ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE HEALTH, EDUCATI ON AND SCCI AL SERVI CES
STANDI NG COW TTEE
January 24, 2002
3:03 p.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Fred Dyson, Chair
Representative Peggy WIlson, Vice Chair
Representati ve John Coghill
Representative Gary Stevens
Representati ve Sharon Ci ssna

Represent ati ve Reggi e Joul e

VEMBERS ABSENT
Representative Vic Kohring
COW TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE BI LL NO. 338

"An Act meking a special appropriation for a grant to Boys and
Grls Cdubs of Southcentral Alaska for a youth suicide
prevention program and providing for an effective date.”

- HEARD AND HELD

COW TTEE DI SCUSSION COF THE AMERICAN [INSTITUTE FOR FULL
EMPLOYMENT REPORT

HOUSE Bl LL NO. 280

"An Act relating to the allocation of the travel expenses that
are necessary to exercise visitation rights with a child when
the parent with primary custody of the child changes | ocation;
and anendi ng Rule 90.3(g), Al aska Rules of Civil Procedure.”

- BILL HEARI NG POSTPONED
PREVI QUS ACTI ON
BILL: HB 338

SHORT TI TLE: APPROP: GRANTS TO PREVENT YOUTH SUl Cl DE
SPONSCR(S): COMUNI TY & REG ONAL AFFAI RS

Jrn-Date Jr n- Page Action
01/ 16/ 02 1982 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME -

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -1- January 24, 2002



REFERRALS

01/ 16/ 02 1982 (H HES, FI N
01/ 16/ 02 1982 (H REFERRED TO HES
01/ 24/ 02 (H) HES AT 3:00 PM CAPI TOL 106

W TNESS REG STER

LORALI CARTER, Staff

to Representative Kevin Myer

Al aska State Legislature

Capi tol Building, Room 110

Juneau, Al aska 99801

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented HB 338 on behalf of the sponsor,
t he House Community and Regi onal Affairs Standing Conmittee.

JOHN QATES, Chief Executive Oficer

Boys & Grls Cubs of Southcentral Al aska

2300 West 36t h Avenue

Anchor age, Al aska 99517

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in favor of HB 338; said it would
allow for an expansion of prograns offered by Boys & Grls O ubs
in 32 statew de cl ubhouses.

SHARRON O DELL

P. O, Box 874305

Wasilla, Al aska 99687

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 338.

ELMER LI NDSTROM Deputy Commi ssi oner

Department of Health & Social Services

P. 0. Box 110601

Juneau, Al aska 99811-0601

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: During discussion of HB 338, testified
regardi ng the governor's suicide prevention council.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

TAPE 02-3, SIDE A
Number 001

CHAIR FRED DYSON called the House Health, Education and Soci al
Services Standing Commttee neeting to order at 3:03 p.m
Representati ves Dyson, WIson, Coghill, and Stevens were present
at the call to order. Representatives Cissna and Joule arrived
as the nmeeting was in progress.

HB 338- APPROP: GRANTS TO PREVENT YOUTH SUl Cl DE

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 2- January 24, 2002



CHAI R DYSON announced that the first order of business would be
HOUSE BILL NO. 338, "An Act making a special appropriation for a
grant to Boys and Grls Cubs of Southcentral Alaska for a youth
suicide prevention program and providing for an effective
date."

Number 031

LORALI CARTER, Staff to Representative Kevin Meyer, Al aska State
Legi slature, presented HB 338 on behalf of the House Comrunity
and Regional Affairs Standing Conmttee (HCRA), the bill's
sponsor. She introduced the bill by reading froma statenment as
fol |l ows:

Bet ween 1990 and 1998, nor e t han 180 Al aska

communities were affected by suicide. More than one-
fourth of all suicides were conmmtted by youth between
the ages of 15 and 24. Last year, suicide was the

fifth | eading cause of death in Al aska. The suicide
rate for young Al askans is 37.8 deaths per 100,000 in
popul ation — a rate alnost four tinmes greater than the
national rate.

The noney appropriated to fund the youth suicide
prevention programw |l be divided between each of the
32 clubhouses statew de. This |egislature has nade
children a top priority. House Bill 338 continues the
comm t ment to a strong and healthy future by
recogni zing the need for suicide prevention prograns
i n Al aska.

M5. CARTER indicated that House Comrunity and Regional Affairs
Standing Conmttee nenbers recognize the state's fiscal
situation. She continued to read froma statenent as foll ows:

The co-chairs hope that you wll focus on the health
and social service provided by this bill and pass it
out of commttee. Certainly, the Finance Commttee
will prioritize the needs and wants before them and
make a final decision on the fiscal inpact.

Wth ne today is M. John Qates, the CEO of the Boys &
Grls Cubs of Southcentral Al aska. He will be able
to answer your questions and give an overview of the
program

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 3- January 24, 2002



Nunmber 063

REPRESENTATI VE CI SSNA indicated she is a "big fan" of Boys &
Grls d ubs. She noted that the goals and objectives, outlined
in the "Youth Suicide Prevention Project Goal" chart, target
managenent, not program strategies. "I wonder if you do have
goals for the programitself,” she said. She pointed out that
none of these objectives address the effectiveness of the
pr ogram She enphasi zed the inportance of built-in assessnent
to ascertain the effectiveness of the program s inplenentation.

Number 091

M5. CARTER drew attention to the footnote on the goal chart.
She indicated that the chart was created as a project tenplate.

Number 095

REPRESENTATI VE Cl SSNA queri ed whether objectives were built into
the program that assess the effectiveness of the goal stated in
the bill's title.

MS. CARTER responded that results-based |anguage would not be
found in the bill. She stated, "W certainly didn't want to ask
the Boys & Grls Club[s] to report back to us.” Perhaps it is
sonet hing Representative Cissna would like to see inplenented
she st at ed.

Nunber 114

REPRESENTATIVE CISSNA reiterated the need for "neasurable
i nprovenent . " She noted the general trend toward neasurable
goal s and obj ecti ves.

Nunber 122

CHAIR DYSON stated that he concurred with Representative G ssna
[regarding the need for nmeasurable outcones]. He added that
since both the Senate and House had inplenmented m ssions and
measures, that was a legitimte question. He noted that it was
i ncunbent upon the conmttee to evaluate various programs to
determ ne a reasonable result that nenbers could expect. Chair
Dyson agreed that suicide rates should go down as a result of
this program

Nunber 145

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -4- January 24, 2002



REPRESENTATI VE JOULE agreed that specifying desired outcones is
necessary. He stated that he had served on the al cohol and drug
boar d. Oten that budget reflected a treatnent priority, when
in fact, prevention was a high priority not readily evidenced in
t he budget, he not ed.

Nunber 162

MS. CARTER reported that HCRA had originally |ooked at |anguage
that would include goals and neasurabl e performance indicators.
She noted that the response from Legi sl ative Legal and Research
Services was that this was not a standard procedure for a grant

not established by a state agency. She added that individual
cl ubs woul d nodify the general program

Number 176
REPRESENTATI VE STEVENS asked about a budget page for the grant.
Number 183

MS. CARTER drew nenbers' attention to lines 8 and 9 of the bil
and stated that the funds were "for a youth suicide prevention

program that includes drug, al cohol , and teen pregnancy
preventi on, educat i on, career devel opnent, | eadership and
character devel opnent, conflict resol ution, and viol ence

prevention, and fitness and social [recreation] prograns.”
Nunmber 193

REPRESENTATI VE STEVENS clarified that he was seeking a nore
t horough breakdown [of the budget].

Nunber 194

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL observed that this is "quite a broad
spectrunm covered in the bill's |anguage. He asked whet her
suicide prevention necessitated inclusion of all of those
[topics].

Nunmber 212

M5. CARTER indicated that HB 338 would not include a fiscal note
because there would be no fiscal inpact to the departnent; it is
general fund noney.

Number 215

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 5- January 24, 2002



JOHN QATES, Chief Executive Oficer, Boys & Grls dubs of
Sout hcentral Al aska, testified in favor of HB 338. He noted
that three [Boys & Grls Cubs] organizations in Alaska -
Fai r banks, Kenai, and Southcentral - are recognized by the
nati onal organization. The Sout hcentral organization was asked
by the national one to expand the clubs throughout Al aska; it
has opened clubs from Metlakatla to Barrow. He noted that 16
new cl ubs have been established in the |ast three years.

Number 245

CHAI R DYSON sai d he was pl eased that new clubs have been started
in Western and Southeast Al aska. He asked how Boys & Grls
Cl ubs work in predom nantly Native vill ages.

Number 250

MR. CQATES replied that the "Indian country” novenent in the
Lower 48 started [in the Boys & Grls Clubs] approximtely five
years ago. He said, "First of all, we weren't Indian country,
and [we] explained the situation here with ... Alaska Natives."
He stated that the needs in rural Alaska were outlined for the
national organization. [United States] Senator Stevens becane a
Boys & Grls Cubs “"fanatic" after he "took over the

chairmanship of the appropriations conmttee," M. Cat es
coment ed. Boys & Grls Cdubs' expansion appropriations,
explained M. OCates, went from $15 nmillion to $70 nmillion in

five or six years. Alaska is receiving approximately $5 mllion
in federal nonies for the statewi de expansion into Al askan
Native comunities, he stated.

Number 277

MR, CQATES indicated that nuch of this [federal appropriation] is
due to the high suicide rate anong children and the |ack of

activities before and after school. Boys & Grls O ubs has over
40 prograns designed collaboratively with sponsors. Most cl ubs,
he noted, run 8 to 12 prograns. When going into a rural
comunity, Boys & Grls Clubs |ooks for a facility, |ocal
| eadership, and sone type of local funding - be it cash or an
i n-kind contribution. He enphasized that "the heart and soul”

of Boys & Grls Clubs is the clubhouse. M. Qates explained
that nost clubs begin small and then grow in staff and prograns
as resources all ow.

Number 310

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 6- January 24, 2002



MR. CQATES pointed out that in Bush conmunities, Boys & Grls
Cl ubs expands its normal age range to include younger children.

Number 315

CHAI R DYSON inquired whether Boys & Grls Cubs places staff in
new cl ubhouses or hires and trains |ocal people.

Number 320

MR. OATES replied that Boys & Grls Cubs has done it both ways.
He noted that the npbst success occurs when staff is hired
| ocally; the organization endeavors to hire locally whenever
possi bl e.

Number 330

CHAI R DYSON queried if local staff were free to adapt prograns
to fit the local situation

Number 332

MR. OATES responded that this was indeed the case. He gave the
exanpl e of Tyonek, where the clubhouse is used by parents and
elders to teach children their culture. He indicated that the
school was too formal of a setting and the hone too informal for

teaching culture. In Tyonek, nenbers drum sing, and dance in
t he cl ubhouse, he pointed out. In Metlakatla, he said, "spirit
canp" takes place each sumer, and in Hydaburg, nenbers are
carving totem pol es. He said the clubhouses run Boys & Grls

Cl ubs' progranms as well as cultural prograns. He noted that the
cl ubhouse is "a terrific opportunity and facility."

Nunmber 364

CHAI R DYSON asked whether the Boys & Grls Cubs had a suicide
prevention program that had been in place |Iong enough in North
Anerica to establish its effectiveness.

Number 370

MR. OATES responded by acknow edging that outcones are very
i nportant. He stressed that he was pleased that nore grantors
are holding the recipients of funding nore accountable for
out cones. He noted that this was not always true in the past.
M. Cates described how one neasurable outcone, used in the

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -7- January 24, 2002



Spenard club, is attendance at events that is nonitored by
magneti c sw pe cards. He recounted that [mneasurable outcone]
| anguage had been planned for inclusion in HB 338 and was
subsequently rejected as a result of advice from Legislative
Legal and Research Services. He stated, "The plan is to work
with the state health folks to cone up with sone guidelines.”

Number 398

CHAIR DYSON asked if Boys & Grls Cubs was inplenenting a
sui ci de prevention program el sewhere.

Number 401

MR. OATES responded that he was unaware of a program that fell
"under the suicide prevention unbrella.” He indicated that the
results [of club prograns] existed, but not results specific to
sui ci de prevention.

Nunber 404

CHAI R DYSON noted that his understanding was that this "hasn't
been done exactly this way sonewhere else before," so nenbers
cannot | ook at another club's experience [on which to base their
deci si on] .

Number 406

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON queried whether volunteers were ever used
[to run cl ubs].

Nunber 411

MR. QATES replied that the facilities and professionally trained
staff are the elenents which nmake Boys & Grls Cubs work. He
noted that staff training is expensive. Using paid staff to run
cl ubhouses gives a greater neasure of control and accountability
than volunteers alone would provide, he noted. Boys & Grls
Clubs wutilizes hundreds of volunteers to run athletic progranms
i n Al aska.

Nunmber 428
REPRESENTATI VE ClI SSNA asked whether M. QGates had any outcone

nmeasurenments on any Boys & Grls Clubs' prograns [to furnish to
nmenber s] .

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 8- January 24, 2002



Nunber 437

MR. QOATES answered that studies had been done, but that he
couldn't readily cite them He did note that Boys & Grls O ubs
is "becomng nore and nore sophisticated all the time at
measuring outcones." He gave the exanple of Tyonek, which has
about 65 children; it was averaging 2 youth suicides a year.
Since Boys & Grls Clubs has been in Tyonek, he said, not one
child suicide has occurred. He acknow edged that there were
other [positive influences] in addition to the club, but that
Boys & Grls Cubs helped to inpact that trend. He suggested it
was easier to neasure outcones in the "finite area" of a small
community, where there is |less transience. He expl ai ned that
the statew de expansion of the clubs is in "its enbryo stage."”

Nunmber 464

REPRESENTATIVE CISSNA stated that problens are increasing
[including the incidence of suicide and al coholismin the Bush]

whil e revenues are running out. She noted that the only way to
change [that trend] is by using a guide and neasurenent. The
state is going to do poorly if it doesn't make this change, she
predi ct ed. Representati ve Ci ssna request ed t hat sone

"conmitnment” to [nmeasurable outconmes] be added to the bill
Nunber 474

REPRESENTATI VE Cl SSNA pointed out that [a youth's] first support
is his/her famly. She acknow edged, "Boys & Grls dubs
probably [has] one of the best opportunities to get into
famlies in a way that nobody else can." She asked if the
sui cide prevention programincludes a [fam |y conponent].

Nunber 481

MR. OATES responded that Boys & Grls Cubs does work wth
famlies. He said, "It is a bigger challenge for us in the
Native villages, and I wish that | could say otherw se." He

expl ained that nany of the adults in the conmmunity are rel uctant
to becone involved in the club, but they want their children to
be taught to "make better choices than [they] did." He related
that it is difficult to do this tactfully. It takes tine to
establish trust in a comunity, he expl ai ned.

Number 503

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 9- January 24, 2002



MR. OATES indicated that when parents are involved in club
progranms, it is because their children have brought them He
speculated that in tinme, the clubs could have nore influence
with the adults.

Number 510

REPRESENTATI VE Cl SSNA synpathized with M. QCates regarding the
difficult task of involving parents. She pointed out, however
that if this was established as one of the organization's
primary goals, then this goal mght be nmet nore quickly.

Nunmber 516

MR. CQATES offered that he mght not be giving staff their due
credit [for involving parents]. He described how the club in
Tyonek m ght sonetines remain open all night, enabling parents
and youth to avoid a comunity drinking party. This gives
parents, who m ght otherw se be ostracized for not drinking, an
excuse for not attending the party. He stressed that Boys &
Grls Cdubs' staff nust wuse caution when taking steps to
[include parents]. He disclosed that sone communities are

"pl eading for help."

Nunber 545

REPRESENTATI VE STEVENS noted the nmany other organizations
provi ding youth-oriented prograns around the state. "Why you?"
he asked. "Wy should we give you a mllion dollars and not the
Boy Scouts or 4-H?" He requested clarification regarding the
proposed suicide prevention program - whether a specific
prevention program would be offered or sinply nore prograns
offered to provide [healthy activities] that would, in turn,
prevent sui cide. He asked, "What are you doing specifically
about suicide?" Representative Stevens concluded by asking,

"How are you spendi ng the noney?"
Nunmber 565

MR. OATES replied that clubs wth 250 nmenbers or nore would
receive approximately $37,000; clubs with [ess than 250 nenbers
woul d receive approximately $29,000. The larger clubs would be
enabled to hire an additional full-tinme senior instructor and a

part-tine teen aide. The smaller clubs would have just the
additional full-tinme senior instructor. He added that this
would affect 10 large clubs and 22 small clubs. M. CQates

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -10- January 24, 2002



explained that the allocations mght change if nore clubs were
to be added.

TAPE 02-3, SIDE B
Number 565

MR. OATES stated that the Mtanuska-Susitna area is considered a
"cluster area" for suicide. An 8, 000- square-foot clubhouse had
been built there recently, he remarked. He described that sone
of the reasons for suicide are the lack of hope, the |ack of
school success, and the |ack of expectations. He stated that
Boys & Grls Cubs can help "raise the bar of expectation,”
i nprove self-esteem and assist in college or job readiness. He
related that Boys & Grls Clubs give children a place to go
after school, a tine when there is typically a lack of
supervi si on.

Nunmber 554

MR. QATES answered, "W're there,” in response to Representative
Stevens' question regarding why should Boys & Grls Cubs get
this noney. He noted that this facility-based organization is
aggressively expanding in Al aska. He added that t he
organi zation's eventual goal is to have 65 clubs in the state.
He suggested, however, that if commttee nenbers identified a
facility-based, professionally staffed organization serving
youth nore effectively than Boys & Grls Cubs, he'd "be the

first one to vote to nove your noney over to them" M. OQCates
added, "You need to put your noney where you're going to get a
return on it." Otentines, he offered, government invests in a

"newf angl ed, whi z-bang thing" w thout much return. He furnished
that Boys & Grls Cubs has been around for 140 years; it is
adding a new club every day. "There's a reason for that,"” he
concl uded.

Nunber 534

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON asked what Boys & Grls O ubs Southcentra
was going to do with this additional noney that it was not
al ready doi ng.

Nunmber 529

MR. OATES replied that Boys & Grls Clubs will add to existing

programnms. Cl ubhouses provide basic prograns now, he said, which
i nclude the "Smartnoves" program

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -11- January 24, 2002



Nunber 524
REPRESENTATI VE W LSON asked whi ch progranms woul d be added.

MR. CQATES answered they would add "POAER HOUR, " a honework help
and tutoring program "Goals For Gaduation,” [a career and
educati on goal -setting program; "TEENSuprene Keystone Cub," a
| eadership and community service skills program and the "N KE
SWOCSH Cl ub, " an athletic-based careers program

Number 513

REPRESENTATIVE WLSON inquired whether these prograns were
specifically [designed to be] suicide prevention progranms, or if
the organization's inplenentation of nore prograns would result
in fewer troubled Kkids.

MR. OATES answered, "Yes." He explained that Boys & Grls C ubs
does not have a program specifically targeting suicide
prevention; the "Smart Mves" program however, does address it.
Cenerally, Boys & Grls Cubs' prograns teach abstention, he
sai d. He stated that the severity of Al aska's suicide problem
is not faced elsewhere in the nation. He added that Boys &
Grls Cubs "can have a very positive inmpact on that."

Number 496

REPRESENTATIVE WLSON referred to the map in the commttee
menbers' packets and asked which club sites were proposed for
this year.

Number 493

MR. CQATES replied that the follow ng clubhouses already exist:
Met | akatl a, Hydaburg, Kake, Angoon, Juneau, Seldovia, Honer,
Sol dot na, Kenai, Mountain View, Spenard, Eagle River, Mildoon,
Mat - Su, Tyonek, Bonnie Cusack, South Naknek, King Sal non,
Bristol Bay, Dillingham New Stuyahok, Elim None, Kotzebue,
Barrow, Fairbanks, North Pole, Two Rivers, and Tok. He
indicated that the follow ng clubhouses would open this year:
Sitka, Kodi ak, Delta Juncti on, Aki achak, Aki ak, Bet hel ,
Tul uksak, Yupiit Schools, Stebbins, Saint Mchael, Koyuk,
At gasuk, Nui gsut, and Kaktovi k.

Number 480

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -12- January 24, 2002



REPRESENTATI VE JOULE asked if nenbership fees are required to
join Boys & Grls C ubs.

Nunber 477

MR. QATES responded that nenbership fees range in each community
from no fees to $5; this fee is determned by the individual
cl ubhouse.

Nunber 470

REPRESENTATI VE JOULE said he wondered if sone children were
excl uded because they were unable to pay the nenbership fee.

MR, OATES said that has never been a problem "because we
schol arship kids in" when they are unable to pay.

Number 463

REPRESENTATI VE JOULE asked if Boys & Grls O ubs was partnering
W th school districts to use school facilities.

MR. OATES responded, "In sone areas we are." In sone
comunities, he added, the school is the only facility that wll
wor K. He expressed his opinion that "kids get sick of school,"”
so they tire of being in the school facility. Nevert hel ess,
Boys & Grls Clubs is partnering with districts in comunities
where the school is the only available facility.

Nunber 446
REPRESENTATI VE JOULE asked for verification that Boys & Grls

Clubs was "incorporating the |ocal values" when it established a
new cl ub.

Nunber 438
MR. COATES answered, "I'm not sure that ... is neasurable, but I
think the short answer is yes.” Boys & Grls Cubs does not go

into a community wi thout |ocal |eadership, he pointed out. This
| eadership, M. QCates said, brings the local values and culture
[to the process of establishing a new club].

Nunmber 421

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL commended M. Oates for his work [wth
yout h] . He stressed that HB 338 is a one-tine allocation that

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -13- January 24, 2002



will create an expansion. He asked: How wll Boys & Grls
Clubs [maintain this expansion after the grant cycle ends]? He
al so asked what funding sources are available to Boys & Grls
Cl ubs.

Number 411

MR. OATES explained that Boys & Grls Cubs is fee-based in nmany
pl aces. Chil dcare also provides revenue, he noted, athletic
and other prograns are self-supporting and, in sone cases,
contribute to the clubhouse. Grants are available to Boys &

Grls dubs, he noted. He offered that the Boys & Grls C ubs'
board raises funds through an auction and other fundraisers.
Each community raises funds for its clubhouse, he added.

Number 393

MR. OATES said, "Everything you can think of, we've done" [to
rai se noney]. He offered, "If this is successful, who's to say
that the state isn't going to want to fund this agai n?"

Number 390

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL explained that this [appropriation], if
granted, woul d set a precedent for the |egislature.

Number 378

SHARRON O DELL stated that she is a volunteer at the Mat-Su
Val | ey cl ub. The club has grown since its inception two and
one-half years ago from 35 nenbers to over 350 nenbers.
Vol unteers spend tine with Kkids in various activities, she
stated; they provide another adult with whom a youth can form a
one-on-one relationship. She has observed outcones that include
children [gaining social confidence and skills] as a result of
cl ub menbershi p, she noted. Ms. ODell took note of the Mat-Su
Vall ey's high suicide rate. She pointed out that nenbers view
the adults at the clubhouse as friends [not authority figures];
the club belongs to the kids.

M5. O DELL said Boys & Grls Cubs also offers opportunities for
youth to devel op peer relationships. She highlighted the Torch
Cl ub, which perforns skits in the clubhouse, in schools, and in
the community that delve into teen problens such as pregnancy
and suicide. She closed by recounting the story of a Torch C ub
presi dent who had |lost her friend to suicide; the president had

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -14- January 24, 2002



said, "If he had been a nenber of Boys & Grls Cub[s], he would
not have taken his life."

Nunber 317

REPRESENTATI VE STEVENS asked Ms. O Dell how she would spend
$20,000 to $30,000 at the Mat-Su club to mitigate suicide.

M5. O DELL responded that she was not a staff nenber and
therefore unable to answer his question. She noted that she was
a founder of the Mat-Su club, and she thought that i ncreasing
t he nunber of prograns offered woul d be appropriate.

Nunmber 304

ELVMER LI NDSTROM Deputy Comm ssioner, Departnent of Health &
Social Services, testified regarding the suicide prevention
council established |ast year by the legislature. This council

he noted, was established to prepare suicide prevention
recommendations for the executive and |egislative branches.
Recomendations from this council are not yet avail able because

the council has just begun to neet, he stated. He said the
departnment would be looking to the council for direction in
addressing the problem of suicide. He said, "I'mwlling to go
out on a linb and predict that that $1 mllion would very

easily be used productively to address this problem | can't
imagine that ... this would be overkill in ternms of the

magni tude of the problem"”
Nunmber 283

MR. LI NDSTROM poi nted out that in the budget pending before the
House and Senate finance commttees there is, he believes, a
half-mllion-dollar increment in the governor's budget for
suicide prevention activities, [which would be spent] in
consultation wth the suicide ©prevention council. He
acknowl edged that he was inpressed with the Boys & Grls C ubs'
presentation, but reiterated that the departnment would look to
the council for recomendations for suicide prevention. He
closed by saying that he thought it wuld be a usefu

reconmendation from the House Health, Education and Soci al
Services Standing Conmittee to the finance conmittees that
addi ti onal resources are needed in the area of suicide

preventi on. He said, "I'm certainly not testifying in
opposition to the bill and the need for resources.”
Nunber 276

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -15- January 24, 2002



CHAI R DYSON asked when nenbers coul d expect reconmendations from
t he council .

MR. LI NDSTROM replied that he would speak to the comm ssioner,

who is on the council. He said he thought that the council
woul d have had a representative at the hearing, but he presuned
that the council was still meeting. M. Lindstrom added that he

did not believe the council had yet established a work pl an.
Nunber 268

CHAI R DYSON i nquired whether it mght be reasonable to expect [a
reconmendation] fromthe council within a couple of nonths.

MR. LI NDSTROM answered that the comm ssioner is aware of the
governor's increnent in the budget, and that he couldn't inmagine
the council not nmking a recomendation during this year's
budget process.

Number 263

CHAIR DYSON asked if M. Lindstrom thought it reasonable to
assunme that the council is unlikely to recormend that the entire
$500, 000 be designated for the Boys & Grls C ubs.

MR. LI NDSTROM replied that he couldn't speak to that.
Nunmber 259

REPRESENTATIVE JOULE related his inpression that Alaska is
"small enough"” for nobst present at the hearing to have been
affected by suicide in sone way. He noted that wthin the
famly [context], suicide is an especially inportant issue. He
commended the Boys & Grls Clubs for "stepping up to the plate.”
One of the biggest [factors] in suicide is "not having sonebody
there ... at that ... nonent," he said. Representative Joule
continued, "That abyss of hopelessness ... wll exist where
there seens to be no other alternatives."”

Number 237

REPRESENTATI VE JOULE indicated that if the nenbers wshed to
nove this bill to the House Finance Standing Conmttee, that
would be fine with him he was going to raise the issue with the
suicide council. "I think we need to see what those many m nds

comre up wth,” he said. He noted his hope for nore

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -16- January 24, 2002



comunity partnerships that could be forged by, perhaps, Boys &
Grls Cubs or other community entities such as schools and

busi nesses. Oten parents won't attend J[activities] but
enpl oyees will, he offered. He stated that recreation is an
inportant facet of [suicide prevention], especially in smaller
comunities. "W also need to find a way to show individuals
that they can becone part of the workforce ... and be in their
comunities,” he said. He added that working wth regional
nonprofits, village corporations, and regional corporations
would facilitate the provision of additional |obs. He stated

that he thought these community resources were underutilized.
People are able to make better and healthier choices when they
have access to nore information, he concl uded.

Number 198

REPRESENTATI VE CI SSNA commented that she had wtnessed the
creation of many health prograns over the years and that she
still saw Al aska's problens increasing. She noted that her own
hesitation [in endorsing HB 338] was founded in the nodi cum of
measurable returns from the large anounts of noney spent on
t hese prograns. "W don't know what we're doing," she
enphasi zed. She adnoni shed the nenbers to refrain from spending
"one nore cent" [without the use of neasurable goals and
obj ectives]. She expressed her hope that the new council would
i ncl ude neasurenent [as a conponent of its recomrendati ons].

REPRESENTATI VE CI SSNA noted that other states are "doing sone
great stuff ... wth neasurenent.” She expressed her belief
that Al aska could do the sane. She said, "It's hard, but it's
not inpossible"” to include neasurenent in the state's efforts to
address health i ssues. She offered that the federal governnent
had inplenmented results-based [funding] seven or eight vyears
ago. "Are we going there?" she queried.

Number 157

MR. LI NDSTROM responded that he was l|less involved in budget
activities than others. He noted that he was encouraged by the

m ssi ons- and- neasures activity. He added that sone skepticism
exi sted regarding how seriously the mssions and neasures would
be taken. He pointed to "steadfast interest"” by the finance
commttees; mssions and neasures discussions are "becom ng
institutionalized.” He noted that his departnment is "poised for
what is a needed 'second iteration' on what ... mssions and
neasures really ought to be." He recognized that the first

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -17- January 24, 2002



effort may not have neasured the right things and that sone of
the sel ected neasures didn't have data on which to base them

MR. LI NDSTROM stated that he is "nobderately encouraged"” that
agencies and the legislature are utilizing mssions and
measur es. This can develop into a useful tool to identify
progress and failure in many of these "very difficult and
intractabl e problens,” he said.

Nunber 125

REPRESENTATI VE Cl SSNA asked whether "building a requirenent for
data" or sone kind of neasurement is useful.

MR. LI NDSTROM responded, "Cenerally, the answer is yes." He
added that it is now a rare circunstance in which he does not
have a discussion about neasurenent when working on any bill

He noted that the process needs nore work and attention fromthe

executive and legislative branches; it remains an inperfect
process. It will be "an increnental process of inprovenents,"
he said; the questions and answers will becone nore refined over
time.

Nunmber 075

CHAI R DYSON cal l ed for an at-ease at 4:28 p.m

TAPE 02-4, SIDE A
Number 001

CHAI R DYSON reconvened the hearing at 4:34 p.m He cl osed the
public hearing on HB 338. He announced that the commttee woul d
hol d over HB 338.

Number 013

COWM TTEE DISCUSSION COF THE AMERICAN INSTITUTE FOR FULL
EMPLOYMENT REPCORT

CHAIR DYSON turned the conmmttee's attention to a presentation
made |ast year by the Anmerican Institute for Full Enploynent.
By request from the Senate and House Health, Education and
Social Services Standing Committees, the institute analyzed
Al aska's public assistance prograns. He expressed his opinion
that the firm did an "amazingly thorough job." He noted that
Oregon had done some "imaginative things" [to address public
assi stance issues]. He referred to an interim neeting that he

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 18- January 24, 2002



co-chaired with Senator Lyda Geen at which the report was
present ed. He stated that the administration's response to the
report was that it was excellent. The adm nistration
acknowl edged some "unconfortable" things [brought to light in
the report] as well as issues they had been thinking about and,
per haps, things they should have been addressing. He added that
his inpression from the admnistration was that "they're going
for virtually all of it."

Nunber 042
CHAI R DYSON said he had been given draft legislation from the

adm nistration [that incorporates the findings of the report].
He distributed the draft |egislation to nenbers. He sought the

menbers' concurrence to put this forth as a commttee bill. He
nmentioned that he would provide portions of the report to
menbers as background information. Chair Dyson reported that

the admnistration has contracted with [Sandie Hoback], who
superintended the changes in Oregon's public assistance system
He noted M. Lindstroms commtnent to work with the commttee
to make M. Hoback available for information regarding the
departnment's progress with the recommendations. She will also
be available to nenbers as they align the recomendations wth
proposed | egi sl ati on.

Number 080

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON noted that she was inpressed by M. Hoback
and her presentation, and she is pleased by the departnent's
efforts to [act on the reconmendati ons]. She said she thought
this would be beneficial for the state and its residents, and it
woul d save noney in the |long run.

Number 093

CHAI R DYSON announced that the committee was off the record
[During this tine the commttee continued discussion of the
report and the proposed | egislation.]

ADJ OQURNVENT
There being no further business before the commttee, the House

Heal t h, Education and Social Services Standing Committee neeting
was adjourned at 4:43 p.m

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -19- January 24, 2002



